
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84999262436


Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

September 9, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 

6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Matters on the Consent Calendar are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No discussion 

of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item pulled from the 

Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

Recommended Action:  Approve Consent Calendar 

6A. 

6B. 

6C. 

6D. 

Minutes ï Regular Meeting of August 26, 2020    (Pages 4-7) 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 26, 2020. 

Landscape Equipment Purchase   (Page 8) 

Recommendation: Information Only. 

2020 CDBG-CV1 Application Approval   (Pages 9-19) 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution__-2020 authorizing the City Manager submit an application for 

funding and the execution of a Grant Agreement and any amendments thereto from the 2020 

Community Development Block Grant Program Coronavirus Response Round 1 (CDBG-CV1) NOFA 

dated June 5, 2020. 

REAP Grant Funding MOU   (Pages 20-34) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) 

to receive $10,000 in Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) Grant Funds for the preparation of the 

Housing Element. 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers 

formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers 

formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

8A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ï All Councilmembers

8B. City Operations Update ï City Manager 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

9A. 

9B. 

Proposed City Use of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, & Economic Security (CARES) Act Funding   

(Pages 35-41)  

Staff Presentation: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the allocation of federal CARES funding to 

the City for: 1) $5,000 for City eligible expenses due to COVID-19, 2) $42,500 to fund a small business 

grant assistance program, and 3) $2,500 to fund agreement with Sierra Business Council to manage 

small business grant assistance program. 

No Smoking Ordinance   (Page 42)   

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Discuss and provide staff with direction. 















City of Colfax 2020 CDBG-CV1 Application Approval 

Staff Report September 9, 2020 

Staff Report to City Council 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 9, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: 2020 CDBG-CV1 Application Approval 
 Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  $60,224 Fund(s):  Grant Funded 

Summary/Background 

On March 27, 2020, Congress passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act in 

response to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. The California State Department of Housing and Community 

Development (HCD) published a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for Community Development Block 

Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CDBG-CV1) funds on June 5, 2020 for $18.7 million in 

funds. Eligible cities and counties may submit applications for CDBG-CV1 funds under the NOFA for the 

allocation of $66,224 to the City. A maximum of three (3) activities will be allowed under this application cycle. 

Each activity must expend all funds within 12 months of the contract execution.  

The CDBG-CV1 Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) provides funding ONLY for the following Activities, 

which are narrowly tailored as described in Section II.A and Section II.B of the Notice of Funding Availability 

(NOFA):  

¶ Assistance to businesses and microenterprises impacted by COVID-19 stay-at-home orders and shut-

downs

¶ Public services related to COVID-19 support

¶ Facility improvements related to COVID-19 healthcare and homeless housing needs

¶ Acquisition of real property to be used for the treatment or recovery of infectious diseases in response to

COVID-19

All activities are required to meet a National Objective as outlined under Section IV. of the attached NOFA. 

Public Outreach: 

The City held a Public Hearing for program outreach at the City Council Meeting on August 26, 2020. Council 

opened the Public Hearing, received comments and noted 0 comments were received and concluded at 7:07PM. 

The consensus of the hearing found the following program to be the most critical program for the communities: 

1. Subsistence Payments

The Program Hearing discussion review is noted below: 

Ideas were proposed, Council ultimately decided to proceed with Staffôs recommendation. 

Email Comments included the following: 

No email comments were received. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution__-2020 authorizing the City Manager submit an 

application for funding and the execution of a Grant Agreement and any amendments thereto from the 2020 

Community Development Block Grant Program Coronavirus Response Round 1 (CDBG-CV1) NOFA dated 

June 5, 2020. 













https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-58
https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/codification/executive-order/11988.html
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/20130726-1748-25045-9941/nfira1994.txt
https://www.nps.gov/history/local-law/nhpa1966.htm
https://www.nps.gov/history/local-law/nhpa1966.htm
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/36/800.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=1.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=1.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=1.&title=7.&part=&chapter=3.&article=10.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=1.&title=7.&part=&chapter=3.&article=10.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=1.&title=7.&part=&chapter=3.&article=10.6.
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/DOC_12490.PDF
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/Final-CDBG-Program-Guidelines-2019.pdf


https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/communitydevelopment/rulesandregs/laws/sec5310
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1720.
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2001-title40/pdf/USCODE-2001-title40-chap3-sec276a.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/40/3702
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-1999-title41-section51&num=0&edition=1999
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-51
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-40
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.611
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/5/part-II/chapter-15


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development CDBG-CV NOFA 
Revised 6/3/2020 

15. Lead-Based Paint: 

It will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Regulations (24 CFR Part 35), which 
prohibit the use of lead-based paint on projects funded by the program. 

16. Debarred Contractors: 

It certifies that neither the applicant or its staff are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in federal assistance programs, in any proposal submitted in 
connection with the CDBG program, per the Excluded Party List System located 
at https://www.sam.gov/SAM/. In addition, the applicant will not award contracts 
to or otherwise engage the services of any contractor while that contractor (or its 
principals) is debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 
or voluntarily excluded from participation from the covered transaction, in any 
proposal submitted in connection with the CDBG program under the provisions of 
24 CFR Part 24. 

17. Inspection of Grant Activities: 

It will give HUD, the Comptroller General, the State Department of Housing and 
Community Development, or any of their authorized representatives access to 
and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the 
grant. 

18. Cost Recovery: 

It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted in 
whole or part with CDBG funds by assessing any amount against properties 
owned and occupied by persons of low- and moderate-income including any fee 
charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public 
improvements, unless: 

A. CDBG funds received are used to pay the proportion of such fee or 
assessment that relates to the capital costs of public improvements that 
are financed from revenue sources other than CDBG funds; or  

B. For purposes of assisting any amount against properties owned and 
occupied by persons of low- and moderate-income who are not persons of 
very low income, that it lacks sufficient funds received from CDBG 
Program to comply with the requirements of this clause. 

19. Procurement: 

   It will follow the federal procurement policies per 24 CFR §200.317 et seq. 

  

18

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-35
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-2424
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200/subpart-D












supporting documentation for Local Agency invoices. Invoices for expenditures incurred 

prior to October 1, 2019 will not be reimbursed.  

 

c. The Local Agency shall not be entitled to reimbursement of indirect costs unless a 

copy of an applicable, approved indirect cost plan has been received by SACOG prior to 

submittal of the first invoice from the Local Agency. Indirect cost rates shall be submitted 

annually in accordance with SACOG requirements.  

  

d. Local Agency will be notified within ten (10) business days following receipt of its 

invoice by SACOG of any circumstances or data identified by SACOG in Local Agencyôs 

invoice that would cause withholding of approval and subsequent payment. Local 

Agencyôs invoice will include documentation of reimbursable expenses and billed items 

sufficient for SACOG, in its opinion, to substantiate billings.  SACOG reserves the right 

to withhold payment of disputed amounts. Local Agencyôs failure to comply with any of 

the reporting requirements in this Agreement may impact Local Agencyôs ability to receive 

future REAP funds.  

 

8. Audit, Retention and Inspection of Records: 

 

a. SACOG or its designee, including but not limited to any State or Federal agency, 

will have the right to review, obtain, copy, and audit all books, records, computer 

records, accounts, documentation and any other materials (collectively ñRecordsò) 

pertaining to performance of this Agreement, including any Records in the 

possession of any contractors or subcontractors.  Such Records shall include all 

records of employment, employment advertisements, employment application 

forms, and other pertinent employment data, as well as any records pertaining to 

compliance with Public Contract Code Sections 10115, et seq. and Title 21, 

California Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 2500, et seq. (when applicable) 

and other matters connected with the performance of the contract pursuant to 

Government Code Section 8546.7.   

 

b. Local Agency agrees to provide SACOG or its designee, the State, the California 

State Auditor or any duly authorized representative of the State or Federal 

government, with any relevant information requested and will permit SACOG or 

its designees access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during normal business 

hours, for the purpose of interviewing employees and inspecting and copying such 

Records for the purpose of determining compliance with any applicable Federal 

and State laws and regulations.  Local Agency further agrees to maintain such 

Records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement or 

three (3) years from the conclusion or resolution of any and all audits or litigation 

relevant to this Agreement and any amendments, whichever is later. If any 

litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, monitoring, inspection or other action has been 

started before the expiration of the three (3) years after final payment under this 

Agreement, all records must be retained by Local Agency, its contractors and 

subcontractors until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise 

form it. Records related to any and all audits or litigation relevant to this Agreement 

shall be retained for five (5) years after the conclusion or resolution of the matter. 

SACOG and HCD shall have the right to audit Local Agency records and interview 

employees.  



 

c. If so directed by SACOG upon expiration of this Agreement, the Local Agency will 

cause all Records relevant to the Scope of Work to be delivered to SACOG as 

depository. 

 

d. In addition to any other remedies available to SACOG in law or equity for breach 

of this Agreement, SACOG, may at its discretion, exercise a variety of remedies, 

including, but not limited to, requiring repayment of the Funds disbursed and 

expended under this Agreement. 

 

9. Third Party Contracts:  

 

a. All procurements related to the expenditure of the Funds must be conducted using 

a fair and competitive procurement process. Local Agency may use its own 

procurement procedures as long as the procedures comply with all City/County 

laws, rules and ordinances governing procurement, and all applicable provisions of 

California law.  

 

b. Any contract entered into as a result of this Agreement shall contain all the 

provisions stipulated in this Agreement and shall be applicable to Local Agencyôs 

contractors and subcontractors. Copies of all agreements with contractors and 

subcontractors shall be submitted to SACOGôs project manager.  

 

c. Local Agency shall be responsible for monitoring and enforcement of all 

agreements with contractors and subcontractors to ensure compliance with the 

terms of this Agreement.  

 

 

10. Termination:   

 

a. Either party may terminate this Agreement for any reason, with or without cause, 

at any time, by giving the other party fifteen (15) days written notice.  The notice 

will be deemed served and effective for all purposes on the date it is deposited in 

the U.S. mail, certified, return receipt requested, addressed to the other party at the 

address indicated in Section 17 below. 

 

b.  If either party issues a notice of termination, SACOG will reimburse Local Agency 

for work actually performed up to the effective date of the notice of termination, 

subject to the limitations in Section 6 and less any compensation to SACOG for 

damages suffered as a result of Local Agencyôs failure to comply with the terms of 

this Agreement.   

 

c. Local Agency will have the right to terminate this Agreement in the event SACOG 

is unable to make required payments, including, without limitation, a failure of 

HCD to appropriate funds.  In such event, Local Agency will provide SACOG with 

seven (7) days written notice of termination. The notice will be deemed served and 

effective on the date it is deposited in the U.S. mail, certified, return receipt 

requested, addressed to SACOG at the address indicated in Section 17.  SACOG 

25





























https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=65275783be94fc057482a5c6db5dc505&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/13/120.111
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9722d4cebaa073c18365b9e2e72c5b3c&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=65275783be94fc057482a5c6db5dc505&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110


https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=c13f7d4c18dbbdcf58585809aa7123a7&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=c13f7d4c18dbbdcf58585809aa7123a7&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=65275783be94fc057482a5c6db5dc505&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1c0afa72184267be6e87ac36d6ef9d8c&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=c13f7d4c18dbbdcf58585809aa7123a7&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1c0afa72184267be6e87ac36d6ef9d8c&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1c0afa72184267be6e87ac36d6ef9d8c&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=6f79851f4a36bf838c98fd5645eeb20e&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:13:Chapter:I:Part:120:Subpart:A:Subjgrp:192:120.110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/rio/citation/61_FR_3235
https://www.law.cornell.edu/rio/citation/82_FR_39502
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsvQbCcaK-6_5NCG71JtAmB7b1z8BXt77_1T0kxWInIbGn41rAGufwAzvMo2ZFs8saoJ70NGtxTtI7vkkWnBogDzfC5TYLwpAWmXWfz1X492xeRpWIRXxC2S-43D7M-R34RMmRjgde_TAgfId-EjEEd4Nczymp_X7AWsrbplZ7k5kUzQTfs55zeLEwi0cnzie8oaPLrvgtE4UZ9HA28twhv4_MqWwOCO5S3rkpbm6KpEJzDS2mLD6jTQECpF62EExHryuocb4AsXFsp5GjYB0RkhJoPWrwxIYXDUsramjxhiIX_tiTuWEJiB3udCJWaxVWlCAvbhP-reUjxq5GVPTKI2iIRw1R6pyLwh50gjPJSz3wLEVfQhtBhw1npjjQO-LfX8Swhpi_tMP1L-PJdcKypNiSHvZczOXaihg7W3t2PO9ZKFEUcuk2DuZo-4K72_FCkvC41GSYz3cW3bNK2UwYMnslswfWegOTxiehB-V5eAx1vtNZYRPL_MtIHdtX1b3Z8nZbHiQft9kemUhaALEzoyApImSmiM1TNhnNV3gcdHRUPcUf9J-hT1rahqGeS5U329XUc2_DWEtYwuB3GEJpZo1OyzKLCTkW3fYoc-MqMM_M_kih4GldW08gePpq_C_Tbr-RuRCRftFBIRBSDKwJyzMMnThiDK06M7cQ1rssUEq8yVDaez1wzAasv14MGoTOyobpH-835r8RqKqxQ_KGj9O6LeI690pSwk3Uv-xgckzLgChIxP0-nOtnwUMtmXxIFnYW30eZsHGBPd1Xs6SzWEM_nX6078_eNa8_eEhqguEt_u0AKC4qdsKIBVjRQXw36u4DD2JqYR7wlGQ8s8Hqf8dA-eKn1-so2_ZPd7UsPmvAL6krWEHCLoqggza5Agb2Gt0IusNHEG-xUEFOteZhaiVdCNIRqfYJ29-MIwkJfUIiX_oWeQiEcMuvarYBR6GsHiENtVlj7X87xpIxELa0nblLawp0mH7oqwn9_PGu5GTc5aE21SqV2FN5AFsJnVep1OhATpvwooiv0VE7zvR3_kmZwsMLvzpGc9q7FSCXi4moREf2TTdayHTEr6dH90NdfQXjkixik&sai=AMfl-YSJg9r3cBSHMEztY0GiSRFhk0rb7pgPyn0X6bqZW8NpbzZPfzx3oUUTfPW9CrvRgvWSG04tt0A4x_MnMqDoEypnTDBcJLY75pHgu8ekIXO0DtQmgQjPYH3M2APm8A_apWKf51S-Tt4Kxtau_mhE3koUdd9lcgsIogh0YS4y&sig=Cg0ArKJSzKW9dq2GWlbf&urlfix=1&adurl=https://www.threeinsurance.com/%3Fdclid%3D%25edclid!
https://www.law.cornell.edu/wex/wex_articles
https://www.law.cornell.edu/topn
https://www.law.cornell.edu/ptoa
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/about/how-current





	Agenda 9-9-20 Regular Meeting
	Packet Draft - PG Numbers
	06A - Minutes - Regular Meeting 8-26-20
	06B - Landscape Equipment Purchase
	06C - CDBG-CV1 Application Approval Docs
	2020 CDBG-CV1 Application Approval Staff Report - CORRECT
	2020 CDBG-CV1 Application Approval Resolution - CORRECT
	Statement of Assurances Colfax

	06D - REAP Funds SACOG MOU
	REAP Funds SACOG MOU - SR
	REAP Funds SACOG MOU - Resolution
	REAP Funds SACOG - MOU

	09A - Proposed use CARES Funding
	CARES Funding Sept 2020 - SR
	CARES Funding Sept 2020 - Resolution
	CARES Certification - City of Colfax - 07.10.20
	13 CFR § 120.110 - What businesses are ineligible for SBA business loans

	09B - No Smoking Ordinance Staff Report




